
 
 

Lenawee County Planning Commission 
 

Staffed by the Region 2 Planning Commission (R2PC) 
120 W. Michigan Avenue • Jackson, MI 49201 

Phone (517) 788-4426 • Fax (517) 788-4635 

MEETING NOTICE 

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 
Grant E. Bauman 
R2PC Principal Planner 
(517) 768-6711 
gbauman@co.jackson.mi.us 

DATE: January 17, 2019 

TIME: 6:30 p.m. 

PLACE: 2nd Floor Committee Room 
 Lenawee County Courthouse 
 Adrian, Michigan 

MEETING AGENDA 

 

1. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance 

2. Public Comment [3-MINUTE LIMIT] 

3. Approval of Agenda [ACTION] 

4. Meeting Minutes 

Approval of the Minutes of the December 20, 2018, Meeting [ACTION]  ..........................................  3 

5. Request(s) for Review, Comment, and Recommendation 

a. Consideration of Township Zoning Amendment(s) 

(1) #19-01— Franklin Township [ACTION]  ..........................................................................  5 

b. Consideration of PA 116 Farmland Agreement(s) — None 

c. Consideration of Master Plan(s) — None 

6. Other Business 

a. Old Business — None 

b. New Business — None 

7. Public Comment [2 MINUTE LIMIT] 

8. Commissioner Comment 

9. Adjournment 

 

01/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 1 



This page is intentionally blank. 

01/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 2 



 
 

Lenawee County Planning Commission 
 

Staffed by the Region 2 Planning Commission (R2PC) 
120 W. Michigan Avenue • Jackson, MI 49201 

Phone (517) 788-4426 • Fax (517) 788-4635 

MEETING MINUTES 
Thursday, December 20, 2018 

Old Lenawee County Courthouse ● 2nd Floor Commission Chambers ● Adrian, Michigan 

 Members Present: Mr. Bob Behnke, Education Representative; Mr. Keith Dersham, LCPC Secre-
tary; Ms. Rebecca Liedel, LCPC Chair; Mr. Bruce Nickel; and Mr. Dale Witt 

 Members Absent: Ms. Karol (KZ) Bolton, Lenawee County Commission, and Mr. Ralph Tillotson, 
Lenawee County Commission 

 Others Present: Mr. Grant Bauman, LCPC Staff/Recording Secretary. 

Item 1 Call to order — The meeting was called to order at 6:30 p.m. by Chair Liedel. Those in at-
tendance rose and joined in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

Item 2 Public comment — None. 

Item 3 Approval of Agenda — Staff submitted the 12/20/18 meeting agenda for approval. 

A motion was made by Comm. Behnke, and seconded by Comm. Nickel, to approve the De-
cember 20, 2018, meeting agenda as presented. The motion passed unanimously. 

Item 4 Approval of Minutes — Staff submitted the 11/15/18 meeting minutes for approval. 

A motion was made by Comm. Dersham, and seconded by Comm. Nickel, to approve the No-
vember 15, 2018, meeting minutes as presented. The motion passed unanimously. 

Item 5 Request(s) for Review, Comment, and Recommendation 

a. Consideration of Township Zoning Amendment(s) 

Comm. Nickel explained to the Commission that he is the Building Official for 4 Town-
ships, including Cambridge Township. He is also the Zoning Administrator for Franklin 
Township. He clarified that he is not involved in the Cambridge Township Planning Com-
mission, but does answer zoning questions from time to time, and asked if he should ab-
stain. Given that he will not gain personally from any of the cases, it was the consensus of 
the Planning Commission that he should vote. However, he should abstain from voting on 
Franklin Township zoning requests since he serves as its Zoning Administrator. 

(1) #18-14 | Cambridge Township — Commissioners reviewed proposed text 
amendments to Chapter 36 (Zoning) of the Cambridge Township Code of Ordinances 
regarding solar farm facilities. Staff advised recommending disapproval of the text 
amendments, citing too many issues with the proposed amendments at this time 
(see the staff report). Commissioners discussed the substantive issues described in 
the report as well as the format changes suggested by staff. 

A motion was made by Comm. Behnke, and seconded by Comm. Liedel, to recom-
mend disapproval with staff comments of the proposed text amendments to the 
Cambridge Township Board. The motion passed unanimously. 

01/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 3 



 
Lenawee County Planning Commission 
December 20, 2018, Meeting Minutes Page 2  
 

(2) #18-15 | Cambridge Township — Commissioners reviewed proposed text 
amendments to Chapter 36 (Zoning) of the Cambridge Township Code of Ordinances 
regarding the temporary occupancy of mobile homes, motor homes, and travel trail-
ers during the period of construction of new permanent dwellings. Staff advised rec-
ommending disapproval of the text amendments with comments, suggesting that 
the agricultural district be added to Sec. 36-581 given that dwellings are a permitted 
use in that district as well (see the staff report). Commissioners also discussed the 
time and septic requirements. 

A motion was made by Comm. Nickel, and seconded by Comm. Witt, to recommend 
approval with comments of the proposed rezoning to the Cambridge Township 
Board. The motion passed unanimously. 

b. Consideration of PA 116 Farmland Agreement(s) — None. 

c. Consideration of Master Plan(s) — None. 

Item 6 Other Business 

a. Old Business — None. 

b. New Business — None. 

Item 7 Public Comment — None. 

Item 8 Commissioner Comment — None. 

Item 9 Adjournment. The meeting was adjourned at 7:00 pm. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 
Grant E. Bauman, Recording Secretary 
 

01/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 4 



 
 

Lenawee County Planning Commission 
 

Staffed by the Region 2 Planning Commission (R2PC) 
120 W. Michigan Avenue • Jackson, MI 49201 

Phone (517) 788-4426 • Fax (517) 788-4635 

COORDINATED ZONING REPORT | #19-01 

 To: County Planning Commissioners 
 From: Grant E. Bauman 
 Date: January 17, 2018 

 Proposal: Partial rezoning of property in Section 6 of Franklin Township 

Purpose 

The purpose of the rezoning request is to “conform with current and future use”, according to the appli-
cant (see the background information).1 The Kings Motel was once located on the property and a build-
ing split off from the parcel is now part of the adjacent Evans Lake Resort (see Figure 1b), according to 
the Zoning Administrator (Bruce Nickel). However, the subject property has been most recently used as 
a residential duplex. 

Location and Size of the Property 

Location – The subject property (FR0-520-0020-00) is located at 1245 W. US-12 in Section 6 (T5S-R3E) 
of Franklin Township. The property is situated between US-12 and the north shore of Evans Lake, adja-
cent to the Evans Lake Resort (see Figures 1a, 1b, 5a, 5b, and 5c). Lemm Lane and Breyman Highway are 
located to the east. 

Size – The subject property has an area of 0.3 acres, according to Lenawee County GIS. 

Land Use and Zoning 

Current Land Use – Although the subject property was utilized as a motel in the past, it has been most 
recently utilized as a residential duplex, according to the Zoning Administrator. 

Future Land Use – Franklin Township’s future land use map places the subject property at the edge of 
an area recommended for “commercial” uses (see Figure 2). 

Current Zoning – “R-1 (Single-family Residential)” and “C-1 (General Commercial)” zoning currently 
split the subject property (see Figure 3). 

Public Facilities and Environmental Constraints 

Public Road/Street Access – US-12 (a part of the state trunkline system) provides direct access to the 
subject property (see Figure 1b). 

Public Water and Sewer – Public sanitary sewer service is available according to the Township’s Zon-
ing Administrator. However, pubic water service is unavailable. 

Environmental Constraints – Staff is unaware of any environmental constraints. 

                                                 
1 Please note that the proposed use is listed for informational purposes only. It should not be utilized in making the rezoning 
decision. Circumstances may change, making the proposed use impractical. All of the uses allowed under the proposed zoning 
are pertinent. 

01/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 5 



Page 2 CZ #19-01 
 

Analysis and Recommendation 

Township Planning Commission Recommendation – The Franklin Township Planning Commission 
recommends approval of the proposed partial rezoning (see the background information). 

CZC Staff Analysis – Franklin Township has a zoning plan which includes the following criteria upon 
which a rezoning request must be considered: 

1. Is the proposed rezoning consistent with the policies and uses proposed for that area in the 
Master Plan? 

Yes. The subject property is located on the edge of an area along US-12 recommended for “com-
mercial” uses (see Figure 2). 

2. Will all of the uses allowed under the proposed rezoning be compatible with other zones and 
uses in the surrounding area? 

Yes. A portion of the subject property is already zoned “C-1 (General Commercial)” (see Figure 
3). However, although the property was utilized as the Kings Motel in the past, it has most re-
cently been used as a residential duplex, according to the Zoning Administrator. The rezoning 
will make the duplex a legal nonconformity (i.e., grandfathered). Although the duplex can re-
main, it cannot be expanded. 

3. Will public services and facilities be significantly adversely impacted by a development or use 
allowed under the requested rezoning? 

No. It is unlikely that public services or facilities will be negatively impacted by the proposed 
change in zoning. 

4. Will the uses allowed under the proposed rezoning be equally or better suited to the area 
than uses allowed under the current zoning district? 

Yes. The adjacent Evans Lake Resort (Section 12.02.16 of the Zoning Ordinance lists “hotels and 
motels” as a permitted use in the “C-1” district) is bisected by the property (see Figure 1b). 

CZC Staff Analysis – A portion of the subject property is already zoned “C-1 (General Commercial)” and 
the adjacent Evans Lake Resort is bisected by the property. However, the Franklin Township Board 
should be made aware that the rezoning will make the existing “resi-
dential duplexes” a legally nonconforming use (i.e., grandfathered). 
Although the duplex must be allowed to continue, it cannot be ex-
panded. 

CZC Staff Recommendation – Based upon this analysis, staff ad-
vises the Lenawee County Planning Commission to recommend AP-
PROVAL of the proposed partial “C-1 (General Commercial)” rezoning 
to the Franklin Township Board. 

  

Recommended Actions: 

(1) Recommend APPROVAL 
(2) Recommend DISAPPROVAL 
(3) Recommend APPROVAL WITH 

COMMENTS/MODIFICATIONS 
(4) Take NO ACTION 

01/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 6 



Page 3 CZ #19-01 
 

Figure 1a and 1b 
Location 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Figure 2 
Township Future Land Use 

 

01/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 7 



Page 4 CZ #19-01 
 

Figure 3 
Township Zoning 

 

 

 

Figure 5a 
Aerial Photo 

 

01/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 8 



Page 5 CZ #19-01 
 

 

Figures 5b & 5c 
Google Photos 

 

 

01/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 9 



01/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 10 

gbauman
Typewriter
19        01



01/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 11 



01/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 12 



01/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 13 



01/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 14 



01/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 15 



01/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 16 



01/17/19 LCPC Agenda Packet Page 17 




